
 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday September 3rd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the September 3rd, 2024 Regular Meeting of The Lyman Select Board. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS  
a. MDOT – presentation on 4-way intersection proposal at Rt. 35 & S. Waterboro Rd8 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others 
b. Mail   

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 8/19/2024 

ITEM #4  SIGN WARRANTS  
a. Payroll Warrant #8 in the amount of $52.51 
b. Payroll Warrant #9 in the amount of $32,308.01 
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #55 (FY2024) in the amount of $21,763.37 
d. Accounts Payable Warrant #10 (FY2025) in the amount of $815,180.11 

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any  
b. Josh Eon – Discussion regarding Town Property Logging Effort 
c. Kennebunk Pond – Request for Additional Funds for the Flashing Beacons 
d. RFP – Winter Maintenance Transfer Station, Open Bids 
e. Discussion, FEMA Flood Plain Management Ordinance extension of 90-day emergency enactment 

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
a. Fire Chief – All Hands 
b. Treasurer Expense Report 
c. Assessor – Summary Tax Commitment  
d. ECO ME Rep, Amber Swett – Update on proposal for Municipal composting project  
e. Planning Board – Quarterly Report FY 2024, 4th Quarter 

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Discussion – Day Road, request to lower speed & weight limits.  
b. Review/ Approve Order for Referenda November 5, 2024 
c. Review/ Approve Warrant for Special Town Meeting November 5, 2024 
d. Appointment – Warden for November 5, 2024 General Election 
e. Committee Applicants 

o Giving Committee 
o Planning Board 

f. Cemetery Committee – Request for expendable account for fundraising events.  
g. RFP – Repairs & Maintenance for Loader Equipment, schedule open bid date.  
h. Schedule Workshop in October – Review for YMCA contract, End date October 30, 2024 

Executive Session 
1 M.R.S.A §405 (E) Consultation of legal counsel. 
1 M.R.S.A §405 (A) Discussion regarding personnel matters.  

OTHER 



 

 
ADJOURN 



Ly
m

an
 

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

of
 

Ro
ut

e 
35

 &
 S

ou
th

 S
t./

 
So

ut
h 

W
at

er
bo

ro
 R

oa
d

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 S

af
et

y/
M

ob
ili

ty
 A

na
ly

si
s

Se
pt

em
be

r3
, 2

02
4 

To
w

n 
of

 Ly
m

an

ITEM #1: (a.) MDOT Presentation 



SA
FE

TY
 P

RO
BL

EM
S

H
IS

TO
RY

 O
F 

BE
IN

G
 C

RA
SH

 P
RO

BL
EM

TY
PE

S 
O

F 
C

RA
SH

ES

SE
V

ER
IT

Y
 O

F 
C

RA
SH

ES

SK
EW

ED
 IN

TE
RS

EC
TI

O
N



3



4



5

40
 M

PH

30
 M

PH

30
 M

PH

30
 M

PH



3,
83

0

4,
40

0

3,
16

0
3,

69
0





















9
1

%

Cr
as

h 
Ty

pe
s:

 2
01

4-
20

23
 1

0 
Ye

ar
 P

er
io

d 
65

 
Cr

as
he

s 
6.

5 
Cr

as
he

s/
Ye

ar



D
RI

V
ER

 A
C

TI
O

N
 B

RE
A

K
D

O
W

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
RS

EC
TI

O
N

 
M

O
V

EM
EN

T 
C

RA
SH

ES

JA
N

U
A

RY
 2

0
1
4
 T

H
RU

 D
EC

EM
BE

R 
2

0
2
3

 

4
8

9

2

0

1
0

2
0

304
0

5
0

6
0

2
0
1
4

-2
0

2
3

59
 In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
M

ov
em

en
t C

ra
sh

es

Fa
ile

d
 t
o 

Y
ie

ld
Ra

n 
St

op
H

it 
&

 R
un

81
%

15
%



8
3

%

Cr
as

h 
Ty

pe
s:

 Ju
ne

 2
01

9 
to

 D
ec

 3
1,

 2
02

3
4.

6 
Ye

ar
 P

er
io

d 
29

 C
ra

sh
es

 
6.

3 
Cr

as
he

s/
Ye

ar
Cr

as
h 

Ty
pe

s:
 N

ov
. 2

01
4 

to
 Ju

ne
 2

01
9 

4.
6 

Ye
ar

 
Pe

rio
d 

30
 C

ra
sh

es
 

6.
5 

Cr
as

he
s/

Ye
ar

9
7

%



D
RI

V
ER

 A
C

TI
O

N
 B

RE
A

K
D

O
W

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
RS

EC
TI

O
N

 
M

O
V

EM
EN

T 
C

RA
SH

ES

N
O

V
EM

BE
R 

2
0
1
4

 T
O

 J
U

N
E 

2
0
1
9

2
2

7

0
05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

2
0
1

4
-2

0
1

9

2
9

 In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

M
ov

em
en

t C
ra

sh
es

Fa
ile

d
 t
o 

Y
ie

ld
Ra

n 
St

op
H

it 
&

 R
un

JU
N

E 
2
0

1
9
 T

H
RU

 D
EC

EM
BE

R 
2

0
2
3

2
1

2
1

05

1
0152
0

2
5

2
4

 In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

M
ov

em
en

t C
ra

sh
es

Fa
ile

d
 t
o 

Y
ie

ld
Ra

n 
St

op
H

it 
&

 R
un

81
%

15
%

88
%



H
IG

H
 S

PE
ED

 A
N

G
LE

 C
RA

SH
 S

EV
ER

IT
Y

35
.4

%
0%

15
.4

%

Ro
ut

e 
35

&
 S

ou
th

Ro
ad

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

@
 3

0
m

ph



H
IG

H
 C

RA
SH

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 H

IS
TO

RY
Ye

ar
s

N
um

be
r 

of
 C

ra
sh

es
C

ri
tic

al
 R

at
e 

Fa
ct

or

2
0

2
1

-2
0

2
3

2
1

6
.3

8

2
0

2
0

-2
0

2
2

1
8

5
.8

0

2
0

1
9

-2
0

2
1

1
3

3
.9

7

2
0

1
8

-2
0

2
0

1
4

4
.2

8

2
0

1
7

-2
0

1
9

1
5

4
.3

3

2
0

1
6

-2
0

1
8

1
8

5
.6

4

2
0

1
5

-2
0

1
7

2
2

6
.9

8

2
0

1
4

-2
0

1
6

2
3

7
.3

0

2
0

1
3

-2
0

1
5

1
8

5
.9

0

2
0

1
2

-2
0

1
4

1
2

4
.2

7

2
0

1
0

-2
0

1
2

9
3
.8

3

2
0

0
9

-2
0

1
1

1
4

6
.0

2

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
0

1
2

5
.0

8

2
0

0
7

-2
0

0
9

1
1

4
.4

0

2
0

0
6

-2
0

0
8

1
1

4
.1

5

2
0

0
5

-2
0

0
7

1
2

3
.8

7

2
0

0
4

-2
0

0
6

1
1

3
.5

5

21













H
O

W
 A

W
S 

C
A

M
E 

TO
 B

E 
C

O
N

SI
D

ER
ED

 A
S 

A
N

 
A

LT
ER

N
A

TI
V

E?

RE
V

IE
W

ED
 M

A
IN

E 
EX

A
M

PL
ES

H
IS

TO
RI

C
A

L 
D

A
TA

RE
C

EN
T 

EX
A

M
PL

ES

N
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
ST

U
D

IE
S

N
O

RT
H

 C
A

RO
LI

N
A

 M
EE

TI
N

G
/S

TU
D

Y



A
LL

-W
A

Y
 S

TO
P 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

S



O
LD

ER
 E

X
A

M
PL

E 
O

F 
A

W
S

N
EW

ER
 T

Y
PE

 IN
ST

A
LL

A
TI

O
N

S



H
IS

TO
R

IC
A

L 
M

A
IN

E 
BE

FO
R

E
/ 

A
FT

ER
 

C
RA

SH
 R

ED
U

C
TI

O
N

 =
 5

3%

IN
JU

RY
 C

RA
SH

 R
ED

U
C

TI
O

N
 =

 7
4%

C
RA

SH
 C

O
ST

 R
ED

U
C

TI
O

N
 =

 
92

%



N
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
C

R
A

SH
 R

ED
U

C
TI

O
N

 C
O

N
V

ER
T 

TW
O

-W
A

Y
 

TO
 A

LL
-W

A
Y

 S
TO

P 
C

O
N

TR
O

L

C
RA

SH
 R

ED
U

C
TI

O
N

 =
 8

2%
 

IN
JU

RY
 C

RA
SH

 R
ED

U
C

TI
O

N
 =

 

87
%









C
as

co
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
R

ou
te

 1
1 

/ R
ou

te
 1

21
C

O
N

V
ER

TE
D

 O
C

TO
BE

R 
2

0
1

9



C
as

co
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
R

ou
te

 1
1 

/ R
ou

te
 1

21
C

O
N

V
ER

TE
D

 O
C

TO
BE

R 
2

0
1

9

C
A

SC
O

 3
-Y

EA
RS

 B
EF

O
RE

C
A

SC
O

 3
-Y

EA
RS

 A
FT

ER



D
ur

ha
m

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

R
ou

te
 1

25
 / 

Q
ua

ke
r M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 R

d
C

O
N

V
ER

TE
D

 M
A

RC
H

 2
0

1
8



D
U

RH
A

M
 3

-Y
EA

RS
 B

EF
O

RE
D

U
RH

A
M

 3
-Y

EA
RS

 A
FT

ER

D
ur

ha
m

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

R
ou

te
 1

25
 / 

Q
ua

ke
r M

ee
tin

gh
ou

se
 R

d
C

O
N

V
ER

TE
D

 M
A

RC
H

 2
0

1
8



A
LT

ER
N

A
TI

V
ES

 C
O

N
SI

D
ER

ED

TR
A

FF
IC

 S
IG

N
A

L 
D

ID
 N

O
T 

M
EE

T 
A

N
Y

M
U

TC
D

 S
IG

N
A

L 
W

A
RR

A
N

TS
.

RO
U

N
D

A
BO

U
T

RE
M

O
V

E 
SK

EW
 A

N
D

 T
 IN

TE
RS

EC
TI

O
N

A
LL

 W
A

Y
 S

TO
P 

M
ET

 M
U

TC
D

 W
A

RR
A

N
TS















A
lte

rn
a
tiv

e 
Pr

os
 a

nd
 C

on
s

R
em

ov
e 

Sk
ew

 a
nd

 L
in

e 
U

p 
C

ro
ss

 
St

re
et

s
Pr

os D
oe

s 
N

ot
 S

to
p

 R
ou

te
 3

5
.

C
on

s Ri
g

ht
 o

f 
W

ay
 Im

p
a

ct
s.

M
uc

h 
Le

ss
 P

ro
ve

n 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

Sa
fe

ty
 

A
lte

rn
a

tiv
e.

 
Lo

w
 B

en
ef

it 
to

 C
os

t R
a

tio
.

R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t

Pr
os Si

g
ni

fi
ca

nt
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 C

ra
sh

es
 a

nd
 S

ev
er

ity
 o

f 
In

ju
ri

es
.

M
a

in
ta

in
s 

M
ob

ili
ty

.

C
on

s Si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

R
ig

ht
 o

f 
W

ay
 a

nd
 L

ik
el

y 
C

em
et

er
y 

Im
pa

ct
s.

Re
m

ov
a

l o
f 

Bu
ild

in
g.

Ve
ry

 H
ig

h 
C

os
ts

.
Lo

w
es

t B
en

ef
it 

to
 C

os
t 

Ra
tio

.



A
lte

rn
a
tiv

e 
Pr

os
 a

nd
 C

on
s

A
ll-

W
ay

 S
to

p
Pr

os N
o 

Ri
g

ht
 o

f 
W

ay
 Im

p
a

ct
s.

N
o 

C
em

et
er

y 
Im

p
a

ct
s.

Si
g

ni
fi

ca
nt

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 T
ot

a
l C

ra
sh

es
.

Si
g

ni
fi

ca
nt

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 In
ju

ry
 C

ra
sh

es
.

Ze
ro

 V
eh

ic
ul

a
r 

Fa
ta

l C
ra

sh
es

 a
t A

W
S 

Si
nc

e 
2

0
0

3
.

A
ll-

w
ay

 s
to

p
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ve

ry
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

in
 M

a
in

e.
Ve

hi
cl

es
 E

nt
er

 th
e 

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

a
t L

ow
 S

p
ee

d
s.

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

O
p

er
a

te
s 

a
t L

O
S 

A
 w

ith
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n
Lo

w
es

t C
os

t A
lte

rn
a

tiv
e.

H
ig

he
st

 s
a

fe
ty

 a
nd

 M
ob

ili
ty

 B
en

ef
it 

to
 C

os
t R

a
tio

.

C
on

s Sl
ig

ht
 In

cr
ea

se
 in

 In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
.

St
op

s 
Ro

ut
e 

3
5

 tr
a

ff
ic

.

Al
l-W

ay
 S

to
p 

is
 th

e 
Re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

So
lu

tio
n



BE
N

EF
IT

S 
O

F 
A

N
 A

LL
-W

A
Y

 S
TO

P

SI
G

N
IF

IC
A

N
T 

RE
D

U
C

TI
O

N
 IN

 T
O

TA
L 

C
RA

SH
ES

.

SI
G

N
IF

IC
A

N
T 

RE
D

U
C

TI
O

N
 IN

 IN
JU

RY
 C

RA
SH

 S
EV

ER
IT

Y.

ZE
RO

 V
EH

IC
U

LA
R 

FA
TA

L 
C

RA
SH

ES
 A

T 
AW

S 
SI

N
C

E 
2

0
0
3

.

H
IG

H
 S

A
FE

TY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 /

 C
O

ST
 R

A
TI

O
.

V
EH

IC
LE

S 
EN

TE
R 

TH
E 

IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
O

N
 A

T 
LO

W
 S

PE
ED

S.

IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
O

N
 L

O
S 

A
 W

IT
H

 C
O

N
V

ER
SI

O
N

.





Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

August 19th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 3 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/ 

Selectboard members present: Jessica Picard, Amber Swett, Victoria Gavel, Joseph Wagner, David Alves 
Selectboard members absent: none 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others
Josh Eon – Discussion regarding the timber harvesting efforts on Old Ben Davis Road. His concern
being this is a private road that the property owners take care in maintaining the road. He inquires
about the plan for the logging efforts; if there will be any safety measures in place; and if he can be
placed on the next agenda for follow-up. Discussion with the Town Manager, these inquiries were
emailed prior and are currently being reviewed by the Forester working on the project who will
address the concerns.

b. Mail

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 8/5/2024

David Alves – Motions to approve. Victoria Gavel seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Discussion Geoff is autocorrected as Goff.

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #7 in the amount of $28,436.35

Amber Swett – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #54 (FY2024) in the amount of $30,081.14

Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve. Amber Swett seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Discussion if the $7,000 for Tinker Tom was related to the FEMA storm damage cleanup.
Clarification on the FEMA cleanup, all the invoices have been turned over and the grant approval
process is nearing its end. This amount is not part of the FEMA clean up.

c. Accounts Payable Warrant #6 (FY2025) in the amount of $135,034.66
Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any

Lindsay Gagne – Tony is in the process of updating the Franchise Agreement since the new law went
into effect and will be in touch when he’s completed the revised version.

b. Discussion, November Referendum – Schedule Public Hearing
a. Cemetery Committee, request tabled for further consideration.

Discussion regarding the Cemetery Committee request for funds. The board agrees this is not an 
emergency matter and should go through the normal budgeting process. Discussion regarding the 
committee’s prior request for funds that would have come out of land sales, however the land study 
was put on hold due to public concerns of selling land 
Victoria Gavel – Motions to remove Article 10 regarding cemetery committee’s request for funds.  
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

DRAFT
ITEM #3: (a.) Minutes

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

August 19th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 3 

Further discussion, information on ordinance amendments has been posted. New information on 
ballot questions will become available soon. Information can be found at the Town Hall and on the 
Towns website. The Ordinance Review Committee will join the Select Board for a public hearing to 
present information about the ordinance amendments. The Select Board will schedule a public 
hearing for review of the Town warrant and ballot questions for the November Election.  

A Public hearing is scheduled for Monday October 7th, 2024 at 6:00pm located at the Town Hall. 

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Fire Chief – All Hands – Reviewed in Agenda Packet
b. Victoria Gavel – Fire Commission Updates

Victoria Gavel – The Fire Commission will have their routine meetings on the 1st Thursday of each
month. The last commission meeting they completed approval of warrants and payroll.

c. Treasurer Expense Report – Reviewed in Agenda Packet

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Discussion - RFP For Equalization Project and updating Assessing Tables

Discussion to begin the RFP process now to receive and open bids before the budget process
ensues. This way the board can determine any budgeting needs. At the last Town Meeting there was
discussion that there would be appropriated funds for FY2025 then again for FY2026 with
anticipation the project can take place beginning July 1, 2025. The Assessors goal is to have the
project finished by April, 2026 to help bring the revaluations up. The board agrees to open bids on
October 21, 2024. An RFP will go out soon.

b. Joe Wagner – AARP Age Friendly Program
Discussion; Joe Wagner is in the process of drafting the initial application and will send to a former
colleague for review. He suggests the Comprehensive Plan Committee continue further data
collection efforts on the process, however Peg Macdonald and Michelle Feliccitti agree that the
Committee is focusing their efforts on the comprehensive plan as a whole and have encouraged Joe
to continue efforts with the AARP opportunity including offering a survey at the next election for
voters when they’re leaving the polling area. Joe solicits some input on the application questions.
Karen Kane had reached out to him prior to offer input.

c. GMFR – Request approval of funds for Plymovent Installation
David Alves – Motions to approve $1,250.00 out of the GMRF capital building reserve for the
Plymovent Installation.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

d. Committee’s – Request for funds, November Ballot
Michelle Feliccitti- States she will rescind the request, given the conversation earlier regarding the
Cemetery Committees request. They will go through the budgeting process.
Peg Macdonald – Discussion regarding aligning changes between the comprehensive plan and
zoning changes. The Ordinance Review Committee will take a break for right now until
Comprehensive Plan Committee moves further along with making changes. The Comprehensive Plan
Committee will be working with SMPDC with the funding that is available for committees. Although,
it’s possible it may not cover all the costs. The Ordinance Review Committee may be more
successful if the comprehensive plan is revised before they put further efforts into the zoning
ordinances because this must be consistent with the comprehensive plan.

e. Bunganut Park Committee – Request for approval to create an expendable fund account
Michelle Feliccitti – States the Bunganut Park Committee is exploring ideas with fundraising efforts
to help bring in revenue for the revitalization of Bunganut Park.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

August 19th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 3 

Amber Swett – Motions to create an expendable funds account for Bunganut Park 
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

f. Bunganut Park Committee – Request for funds/ Bunganut Reserve to hire an engineering firm
Michelle Feliccitti – States this company will help develop initial plans for $3,935.00. She’s reached
out to other firms that did not respond. The York County Soil Conservation had recommended this
firm. Acorns expressed an understanding that we are a municipality and willing to support initiatives
that are cost effective. In doing a brief zoom interview and showing the aerial pictures that the
committee was able to take, it was pointed out that the water is backwashing from the lake through
the bog area into the lower field. Acorn will also do some on-site inspections.
Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve $3,935 out of the Bunganut Reserve for Acorn Engineering
Firm.
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

Executive Session 
1 M.R.S.A §405 (C) Discussion regarding the condition, or acquisition of real property 
Amber Swett – Motions to go into executive session per M.R.S.A 405 C, discussion regarding the condition, or 
acquisition of real property.  
David Alves – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

Victoria Gavel – Motions to come out of executive session. David Alves seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

OTHER 

Joseph Wagner – Discussion regarding the Local Health Officer Well Water Program, the Road Commissioner road 
maintenance and Music in the Park.  

ADJOURN 

Amber Swett - Motions to adjourn. David Alves seconds, Motions passes: 5-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Jessica Picard 

__________________________________________ 
David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

_____________________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 3 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting dated August 19th, 2024

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

DRAFT



ITEM #4: (a.) Payroll Warrant





ITEM #4: (b.) Payroll Warrant





ITEM #4: (c.) Accounts Payable Warrant





ITEM #4: (d.) Accounts Payable Warrant













From: Town Manager
To: Josh Eon
Subject: RE: Town Property Logging Effort
Date: Tuesday, August 27, 2024 12:49:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

Hi Josh,

I have added you to the agenda for the upcoming Select Board meeting on September 3rd per your recent
request.

You are correct in noting that the forester will not be taking questions in person. This is consistent with our
practice when working with vendors. I appreciate your concerns and have thoroughly researched your
inquiries. However, at this time, I believe that I have addressed the matter to the best of my ability, and I don't
feel I can provide further resolutions that would fully meet your expectations. Given this, I will be concluding
this inquiry. However, you're more than welcome to attend the board meeting on the 3rd to share these
concerns.

Thank you for your understanding.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne
Town Manager
FOAA officer

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002
207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

selectboard@lyman-me.gov 
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Josh Eon <joshua.eon@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 27, 2024 8:53 AM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: Nicole Broz <nabroz88@gmail.com>; atlanticelectric207@gmail.com; Joe Eon <josepheon57@yahoo.com>;
robert.eon59@gmail.com; sjsmith713@yahoo.com; larsonator88@yahoo.com; piantoniconstruction@yahoo.com;
Ricksim2995@hotmail.com; Jessica Picard <jessicap@lyman-me.gov>; Victoria Gavel <victoriag@lyman-me.gov>; Amber
Swett <ambers@lyman-me.gov>; David Alves <davida@lyman-me.gov>; Joseph Wagner <josephw@lyman-me.gov>;
fourpart1@gmail.com; ambergerjean@gmail.com
Subject: Re: Town Property Logging Effort

Lindsay,

Thank you for the reply regarding the Towns Logging effort and the OBD Road.  Is it correct to assume that the
requested meeting with the Forest will not be occurring as there are additional questions we would like to ask
in person?  It would also be beneficial so that the forester can share this "comprehensive safety plan" you

ITEM #5: (b.) Josh Eon Re: Logging Efforts

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:joshua.eon@gmail.com
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/






refer to below and the actual specifics regarding this plan as well as the steps they will be taking to repair the
road after this effort.

Being that the weight of the average vehicle which utilizes the road currently is between 3000 lbs to 7000 lbs
and the average weight of a fully loaded pulp or log truck can be between 80,000 lbs and 100,000 lbs it is not a
question of if damage will occur but when.  It is also important to note that the majority of wood which resides
on the lots is Oak which is heavier than softwood leading to the likelihood of the trucks being loaded to the
registered max for a triaxle of 100,000 lbs assuming the logging outfit is not overloading their trucks.

When responding to this email please reply all.

Thanks again for the help

Josh Eon
Cell: 207-608-2308 

On Fri, Aug 23, 2024 at 1:26 PM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Hi Josh,

The Forester has conducted an evaluation of the road to identify the best practices for ensuring both safety and the
preservation of the road's current condition. In recognition of the need to conserve the road's durability throughout
the project, the Forester has developed a comprehensive safety plan to address these concerns.

Before any work begins, the current condition of the road and culverts will be thoroughly documented. This
documentation will be updated daily whenever work is scheduled.

During the harvest operations, the condition of the road and culverts will be closely monitored to ensure they remain
in good repair. This monitoring will include routine checks both before and after operations.

The Contractor is dedicated to maintaining high safety standards and will conduct regular safety meetings
throughout the project. Additionally, the Contractor will provide the Town with the necessary insurance certificates.

We appreciate everyone's considerations regarding this matter and appreciate the Forester being able to make
accommodations in support of these concerns.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager
FOAA officer
 

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/


Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

On Thu, Aug 15, 2024 at 1:20 PM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Hi Josh,

With the revision of the Municipal Charter, the Town Manager now handles interactions with vendors on behalf of
the Town. To prevent any confusion or disruptions, we generally ask that residents do not contact vendors directly.
If you have any questions for the forester, please send them to me in a single email, and I’ll be happy to forward
them on your behalf.

Currently, the forester has agreed to inspect the road, and I’m awaiting updates regarding your previous inquiry.
It’s also worth noting that timber harvesting is a common activity, and the companies involved typically carry
insurance to address the concerns you mentioned. As for the overall use of the land, that has not yet been
determined, and we are still in the process of conducting a land study.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager
FOAA officer
 

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Josh Eon <joshua.eon@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 14, 2024 10:08 AM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: Nicole Broz <nabroz88@gmail.com>; atlanticelectric207@gmail.com; Joe Eon <josepheon57@yahoo.com>;
robert.eon59@gmail.com; sjsmith713@yahoo.com; larsonator88@yahoo.com; piantoniconstruction@yahoo.com;
Ricksim2995@hotmail.com
Subject: Re: Town Property Logging Effort

Lindsey,

Thanks for the reply.  I appreciate you being willing to pass along any questions we have but overall it would
be preferred to be able to ask these questions via a public platform.  Would it be possible to have the
forester attend one of the Selectmen's meetings as some of the questions we have are pertaining to the
logging effort and some pertaining to the overall use of the land and the land study which the selectmen
have been performing. More specifically the parking area and trails you mentioned below.

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/
mailto:joshua.eon@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:nabroz88@gmail.com
mailto:atlanticelectric207@gmail.com
mailto:josepheon57@yahoo.com
mailto:robert.eon59@gmail.com
mailto:sjsmith713@yahoo.com
mailto:larsonator88@yahoo.com
mailto:piantoniconstruction@yahoo.com
mailto:Ricksim2995@hotmail.com


To keep everyone informed I have included the other individuals who would also be attending this
discussion and reside on the road in the email.  

Thanks again for the help with this. 

Josh Eon
Cell: 207-608-2308 

On Tue, Aug 13, 2024 at 9:52 AM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Hi Josh,

If you send me you’re questions, I’d be happy to forward them to the Forester.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager
FOAA officer
 

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Josh Eon <joshua.eon@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 12, 2024 2:06 PM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Subject: Re: Town Property Logging Effort

Lindsay, 

Thanks for the Help.  Would it be possible to schedule a time to have the forester answer a few questions
that myself and a few residents who reside on the road have or would it be possible to have the forester's
contact info so that we can reach out directly?

Thanks again.

Josh Eon
Cell: 207-608-2308 

On Mon, Aug 12, 2024 at 1:48 PM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Hi Josh,

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/
mailto:joshua.eon@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov


I've reached out to the Forester to gather more information about their practices in these situations.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager
FOAA officer
 

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Josh Eon <joshua.eon@gmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, August 9, 2024 10:08 AM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Subject: Re: Town Property Logging Effort

Lindsay,

Thanks for the help and the Info.  Being that the Old Ben Davis Road is Private, all costs associated with
the maintenance of the roughly 3,600' road falls on the 13 families who currently reside on it.  Does the
town have a plan in place to assist with damage to the road which may be incurred during this roughly
40 acre logging effort such as crushed culverts and rutting?  Also, there are a good number of families
with small children and animals who utilize the road on a daily basis.  Will the logging effort have a plan
in place so that the trucks and effort do not pose a risk to those individuals?

Thanks again for the help.

Josh Eon
Cell: 207-608-2308 

On Fri, Aug 9, 2024 at 9:09 AM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Good morning Josh,

They plan to do forest management sometime in the Fall. Right now, they are flagging property lines. They
will be creating a parking area off of the old ben Davis road for their equipment on the parcel they are
harvesting from. When done with the harvest we’ve asked that they leave the skid trails and parking area
clean for potential trail system.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/
mailto:joshua.eon@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov


FOAA officer
 

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Josh Eon <joshua.eon@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, August 8, 2024 11:21 AM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Subject: Re: Town Property Logging Effort

Thank you for the help.

Josh Eon
Cell: 207-608-2308 

On Thu, Aug 8, 2024 at 9:15 AM Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> wrote:

Good morning Josh,

I’ve forwarded this information to the forester to see if they can provide an update and will be in touch as
soon as I have more information.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager
FOAA officer
 

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Josh Eon <joshua.eon@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, August 8, 2024 8:57 AM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Subject: Town Property Logging Effort

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/
mailto:joshua.eon@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/
mailto:joshua.eon@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov


Lindsey,

I Live at 146 Old Ben Davis Road in Lyman and ran into a Forester parked across from my driveway
earlier this evening.  After a brief discussion she mentioned that she was marking out the 2
properties that abut and are across the road from our parcel (Map 3 lots 62 & 63A).

I was wondering if you knew the schedule for the logging effort and what the plan for access is
pertaining to this effort?

Thanks for the help.

Josh Eon
Cell: 207-608-2308 



From: Treasurer
To: Town Manager
Subject: FW: Quote #5006
Date: Monday, August 26, 2024 1:41:07 PM
Attachments: Town of Lyman Quote #5006.pdf

Hi Lindsay,

Attached is the new quote on the poles for the crossing signs on Kennebunk Pond rd.   The
difference is $367.20.   This does include shipping.   If the could please vote the following:

$18.32 from the Kennebunk Pond Reserve Account (which would close this out)
$348.88 from Capital Improvement

Then we can get this done.   Please let me know if you have any questions.   Thanks.

Jeanette Lemay
H.R. and Finance Officer
Town of Lyman
11 So. Waterboro Rd.
Lyman, ME 04002
(207) 247-0646

From: Linda Clinton <Linda@highwaytech.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 26, 2024 12:35 PM
To: Treasurer <treasurer@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: Erica Cyr <erica@highwaytech.com>
Subject: RE: Quote #5006

Good afternoon Jeanette

Yes, it does include the shipping 
Thank you.
Linda

From: Treasurer <treasurer@lyman-me.gov> 
Sent: Monday, August 26, 2024 12:24 PM
To: Linda Clinton <Linda@highwaytech.com>
Cc: Erica Cyr <erica@highwaytech.com>
Subject: RE: Quote #5006

Hi Linda,

Does this include the shipping?   Thanks

ITEM# 5: (c.) Flashing Beacons Invoice Update

mailto:treasurer@lyman-me.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:treasurer@lyman-me.gov
mailto:Linda@highwaytech.com
mailto:erica@highwaytech.com



Quote
DATE


8/26/2024


QUOTE#


5006


CUSTOMER


Town of Lyman
Jeanette Lemay
11 So Waterboro Rd.
Lyman, ME 04002


Highway Tech
88 Commercial St
Lewiston, ME 04240-3903
Tel. (207) 375-8248


TERMS


Net 30 1.5%


REP


NL


FOB


Lewiston, ME


PROJECT


E-MAIL ADDRESSCUST. PHONE


LEAD TIME


6-10 weeks


TOTAL


DESCRIPTION QTY TOTALUNIT PRICE


Town of Lyman
PB-5100-16-P34,  Pole, 4"- 8 NPT TOE, Sch 40 x 16', Spun
w/ Pelican,  Black Finish


2 1,836.00918.00


PB-5334-P34, Aluminum Square Base Assembly, Aluminum
Door, Black Finish


2 471.00235.50


TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
Quoted prices are good for 30 days from the above date, unless otherwise specified and for the quantities listed.  
Freight and handling are in addition to the prices quoted above, unless otherwise specified.  
Terms of payment are net 30 days with a 1.5% service charge after 30 days, unless otherwise specified.


$2,307.00











Jeanette Lemay
H.R. and Finance Officer
Town of Lyman
11 So. Waterboro Rd.
Lyman, ME 04002
(207) 247-0646

From: Linda Clinton <Linda@highwaytech.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 26, 2024 11:04 AM
To: Treasurer <treasurer@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: Erica Cyr <erica@highwaytech.com>
Subject: Quote #5006

Good morning Jeanette,

Attached please find Invoice #5006

Thank you,

Nancy Lavallee
Highway Tech

Linda Clinton 
Office Manager 
Highway Tech 
88 Commercial Street 
Lewiston, ME 04240             
Phone: 207-376-3833 x837 
Fax:     866-232-7014 
E-Mail: linda@highwaytech.com

mailto:Linda@highwaytech.com
mailto:treasurer@lyman-me.gov
mailto:erica@highwaytech.com
mailto:linda@highwaytech.com


Quote
DATE

8/26/2024

QUOTE#

5006

CUSTOMER

Town of Lyman
Jeanette Lemay
11 So Waterboro Rd.
Lyman, ME 04002

Highway Tech
88 Commercial St
Lewiston, ME 04240-3903
Tel. (207) 375-8248

TERMS

Net 30 1.5%

REP

NL

FOB

Lewiston, ME

PROJECT

E-MAIL ADDRESSCUST. PHONE

LEAD TIME

6-10 weeks

TOTAL

DESCRIPTION QTY TOTALUNIT PRICE

Town of Lyman
PB-5100-16-P34,  Pole, 4"- 8 NPT TOE, Sch 40 x 16', Spun
w/ Pelican,  Black Finish

2 1,836.00918.00

PB-5334-P34, Aluminum Square Base Assembly, Aluminum
Door, Black Finish

2 471.00235.50

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
Quoted prices are good for 30 days from the above date, unless otherwise specified and for the quantities listed.  
Freight and handling are in addition to the prices quoted above, unless otherwise specified.  
Terms of payment are net 30 days with a 1.5% service charge after 30 days, unless otherwise specified.

$2,307.00



TOWN OF LYMAN 
11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002  

Tel: (207)-247-0642 FAX: (207)-499-7563 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

WINTER MAINTENANCE – TRANSFER STATION FACILITY 

SNOW REMOVAL & SANDING 

PROJECT TITLE: Winter Maintenance – Transfer Station Facility 

PROPOSAL DUE DATE: September 3rd, 2024 by 1:00pm  
Sealed bids will be opened on September 3rd, 2024 during the Select Board meeting. 

CONTRACT PERIOD: Three (3) years (October 1, 2024 – October 1, 2027) 

CONTENTS OF THIS RFP: 

1. Introduction
2. Scope of Work
3. Conditions & Instructions to Bidders
4. Pricing
5. Submission of Proposals
6. Bid Proposal Form

1. INTRODUCTION

The Town of Lyman is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to plow and sand/salt the Transfer Station 
facility located at 988 South Waterboro Rd Lyman, Maine.  

The intention of this RFP is to solicit responses and formal proposals and select a single organization to provide 
services to the Town of Lyman. 

The scope of work is as outlined in this request for proposal. This document does not commit the Town of Lyman to 
any contract for any service, supply, or subscription whatsoever. The Town of Lyman will not reimburse any 
information or administrative costs incurred as a result of participation in response to the RFP. All costs associated 
with response will solely reside at the responding party’s expense.  

Please submit your proposal in a sealed envelope to the Town of Lyman by September 3rd, 2024 by 1:00pm EST. 
Proposals must be addressed to: 

Town of Lyman, Select Board 
RFP: Winter Maintenance – Transfer Station 
11 South Waterboro Rd 
Lyman, ME 04002 

Please mark sealed proposals plainly “RFP: Winter Maintenance – Transfer Station”. Proposals will be opened 
publicly during the Select Boards regular meeting on September 3rd, 2024. The Town will not except late bids.  
Questions regarding this request for proposal should be directed to: 

townmanager@lyman-me.gov  
Or call the Town Manager Office: 207-247-0642 

ITEM #5: (d.) Open Sealed Bids for RFP

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov


2. SCOPE OF WORK

• Plow and/or sand the Transfer Station yard associated work areas as needed to maintain access and safe
conditions for the public, transfer station employees and trucks hauling waste and recycling materials. (Areas
to be plowed/sanded include: Entrance/access road to the Transfer Station, the general yard area, including
all paved surface areas, through area behind garage to recycling compactors). No areas unpaved, such as
gravel road to the salt shed need to be plowed.

• Services to be provided when weather conditions warrant as agreed to upon contract and also upon request
of Transfer Station personnel. (As a general standard, plowing is required when 3 inches or more of snow has
accumulated. Sanding is required when the surface is slippery enough to cause walking or driving difficulties
or otherwise unsafe conditions).

• Contractor shall be responsible for providing all equipment necessary to perform the work. Town will provide
the sand/salt

• Contractor must provide proof of insurance coverage as per contract agreement, including a certificate
naming the Town of Lyman as additionally insured.

• Contractor shall be responsible for prompt communications when called upon by Transfer Station personnel
during winter/snow season.

The Lyman Transfer Station is located at 988 South Waterboro Road Lyman, Maine 

Transfer Station hours are from 8:00am to 4:00pm on Saturdays, Sundays, and Thursdays, and Tuesdays from 8:00am 
to 12:00pm. During hours of operation, initial snow removal to commence at 3 inches and every 3 inches thereafter 
and will be completed 30 minutes before start of business and continue through business hours as necessary. After 
business hours, snow may accumulate to 6 inches and will be removed as necessary. Sanding will be to the bare lot.  

Terms and conditions will be further defined in a formal contract.  

Contractors will submit an all-inclusive, fixed price bid, including subcontractor costs, if applicable. 

3. CONDITIONS & INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

• Bidders shall use the enclosed bid form and submit additional information/credentials attached with bid form.

• Proposals must include separate line-item costs for any or all the items outlined on the proposal form.

• Proposals must be completed in full and must be signed by a firm official or representative. Proposals may be
withdrawn prior to the time set for the official opening. Request for withdrawn must be submitted in writing.

• Proposals will be opened publicly. Bidders or representatives may be present at opening.

• Issuance of this RFP and receipt of proposals does not commit the Town to award a contract. The Town
reserves the right to postpone receipt date, accepting or rejecting any or all proposals received in response
to this RFP, or to negotiate with any of the consultants/firms submitting an RFP, or to cancel all or part of this
RFP.

• Please state “RFP: Winter Maintenance – Transfer Station” on submitted, sealed envelope.



• The Town of Lyman reserves the right to waive any formality and technicality, whichever is deemed best for
the interest of the Town.

• The Select Board will review sealed bids in an open public meeting and may, at the boards’ discretion, delay award
pending further review. It should be noted that the contract resulting from this RFP will be awarded to the
respondent whose proposal is determined to be in the “best interest” of the Town. Therefore, the proposal
offering the lowest cost may not necessarily be the proposal that is selected for award.

• RIGHT OF REFUSAL. The Town reserves the right to: a) Reject any or all proposals, or to make no award. b)
Select certain applications from the proposals. c) Require modifications to initial proposals. d) to make partial
or multiple awards. e) award based on initial proposals received, without discussion of such proposals. f)
invite selected vendors to make oral presentations to the evaluations team. Failure of a vendor to comply
with the request for meeting may be grounds for bid rejections. g) excuse technical defects in a proposal
when, in its sole discretion, such as excuse is beneficial to the Town.

• The Contractor will furnish the Town with a certificate(s) of insurance executed by a duly authorized
representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth below. The
Contractor shall, at its own expense, obtain and keep in force insurance coverage during the full term of the
contract. Upon the Town’s acceptance of the Contractor’s proposal, a Certificate of Insurance shall be
provided to the Town by the Contractor or the Contractor’s insurance company before any work is
performed.  The Contractor’s policies shall name the Town of Lyman as an additional insured.

o Liability Insurance (Or Commercial Liability): Contractor shall maintain general liability with a limit of
not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), combined single limit.

o Automobile Liability Insurance: Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance with a limit
not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit.

o Workers’ Compensation: Contractor will maintain workers’ compensation in amounts required by
Main law and Employer’s Liability Insurance, as necessary, as required by Maine law. If in the event
the contractor is not required to carry workers’ compensation according to Maine law, then the
contractor must provide the Town with an approved Independent Contractors Status from the State
of Maine.

• The contract agreement will be for October 1, 2024 through October 1, 2027 and work will commence in
2024 as weather conditions dictate. Years 2 and 3 of the contract are subject to appropriations approved by
the Town.

4. PRICING

Proposals will clearly state and explain all costs associated with the services provided. The Town of Lyman will not 
make any advance payments. Invoices for services performed shall be submitted monthly beginning no sooner than 
November. The Town will pay the contractor in equal payments on the first accounts payable warrant beginning 
November through final payment in April.  

There is no expressed or implied obligation on the part of the Town of Lyman to reimburse bidders for any expenses 
incurred in preparing or presenting proposals in response to this request.  



5. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS

All proposals must be submitted in sealed envelopes, addressed to the Town of Lyman, Select Board and plainly 
marked “RFP: Winter Maintenance – Transfer Station”  

Bid proposals will be date stamped on the outside of the envelope immediately upon receipt. Any bid may be 
withdrawn in writing prior to the scheduled time for opening bids. Any bids received after the time and date 
specified shall not be considered and shall be returned to the bidder unopened. Bidders shall bid to specifications 
and any exceptions must be noted. A bidder submitting a bid thereby certifies that the bid is made in good faith 
without fraud, collusion, or connection of any kind with any other bidder for the same work, and that the bidder is 
competing solely on his/her behalf without connection with or obligation to any unsolicited person or firm.  

No electronically submitted proposals will be accepted in response to this request. 

The Town Manager will serve as the single point of contact for this request. All official communication between the 
bidder and the Town upon release of this RFP shall be with the Town Manager. Any other communication will be 
considered unofficial and non-binding on the Town. However, bidders are encouraged to visit the Transfer Station 
and/or inquire about the scope of work, if necessary, to help submit an accurate bid.  

Lindsay Gagne 
Town Manager 
11 South Waterboro Rd 
Lyman, ME 04002 
Tel. (207)-247-0642 
email: Townmanager@lyman-me.gov 

This RFP does not obligate the Town of Lyman to contract for services specified herein.  

The Town of Lyman reserves the right to extend a contract for ongoing services without reissuing an RFP. 

mailto:Townmanager@lyman-me.gov


6. BID PROPOSAL FORM

Due: September 3rd, 2024 by 1:00pm  EST. 

To: Town of Lyman, Select Board 
RFP: Winter Maintenance – Transfer Station 
11 South Waterboro Rd 
Lyman, ME 04002 

Contractor must provide separate line item as outlined below: 

Year 1 : (2024 – 2025) Plowing/Sanding Total cost $_____________________ 

Year 2 : (2025 – 2026) Plowing/Sanding Total cost $_____________________ 

Year 3 : (2026 – 2027) Plowing/Sanding Total cost $_____________________ 

Additional Services/Fees, if applicable: 

___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________ 

The undersigned individual/firm/business guarantees this price for sixty days (60) from the proposal due date. The undersigned submits this 

proposal without collusion with any other person, individual, firm or agency. The undersigned ensures the authority to act on behalf of the 

corporation, partnership or individual they represent; and has read and agreed to all of the terms, requests, or conditions written herein by the 

Town of Lyman.   

By signing this form, the firm listed below hereby affirms that its bid meets the minimum specifications and standards as listed above. 

Signature _____________________________________________ Company ________________________________________________

Name (print) __________________________________________________Telephone # _____________________________________

Title __________________________________________ ________________Fax # _____________________________________________

Address __________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Email Address ___________________________________________________________________________________________________

Web Site _________________________________________________________________________________________________________



ITEM #6: (a.) GMFR Report







ITEM #6: (b.) Expense Report

























2
0

2
4

-2
0

2
5

 C
O

M
M

IT
M

EN
T 

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

FY
 2

4
-2

5
P

ri
o

r 
FY

 2
3

-2
4

C
e

rt
if

ie
d

 R
at

io
 7

6
%

C
e

rt
if

ie
d

 R
at

io
 8

9
%

In
cr

e
as

e
 /

 D
e

cr
e

as
e

*E
xe

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

$
2

5
,0

0
0

 H
o

m
es

te
a

d
 &

 $
6

,0
0

0
 V

et
er

a
n

s 
a

re
 a

d
ju

st
ed

 t
o

 c
er

ti
fi

ed
 r

a
ti

o
 (

$
1

9
,0

0
0

 &
 $

4
,5

6
0

 r
es

p
ec

ti
ve

ly
)

M
ill

 R
at

e
 p

/$
1

,0
0

0
1

2
.6

1
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

2
.1

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0
.4

2
$

  
  

0
.0

1
2

6
1

0
.0

1
2

1
9

0
.0

0
0

4
2

V
al

u
at

io
n

 B
as

e:

Ta
xa

b
le

 R
ea

l &
 P

er
so

n
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 

6
6

2
,4

7
3

,1
0

0
$

  
 

6
4

8
,9

2
9

,1
2

0
$

  
   

1
3

,5
4

3
,9

8
0

$
  

   

H
o

m
es

te
ad

 R
ei

m
b

u
rs

em
en

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
St

at
e

+
1

7
,0

0
2

,7
2

0
$

  
   

@
 7

6
%

1
9

,9
0

1
,7

4
0

$
  

   
@

 7
6

%
(2

,8
9

9
,0

2
0

)
$

  
  

B
ET

E 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e 

St
at

e
+

1
,2

4
7

,8
0

0
$

  
   

@
 5

0
%

8
0

0
,5

0
0

$
  

   
@

 5
0

%
 

4
4

7
,3

0
0

$
  

   

To
ta

l V
al

u
at

io
n

 B
as

e:
6

8
0

,7
2

3
,6

2
0

$
  

  
6

6
9

,6
3

1
,3

6
0

$
  

   
1

1
,0

9
2

,2
6

0
$

  
   

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
io

n
s 

- 
V

o
te

d
 B

u
d

ge
t 

(D
o

lla
rs

 O
u

t)
:

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

5
,9

9
0

,6
0

7
$

  
   

5
,5

9
7

,2
4

5
$

  
   

3
9

3
,3

6
2

$
  

   

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

4
,5

7
3

,1
1

9
$

  
   

4
,3

8
5

,3
7

4
$

  
   

1
8

7
,7

4
5

$
  

   

C
o

u
n

ty
3

6
9

,3
4

6
$

  
  

3
3

5
,1

8
4

$
  

   
3

4
,1

6
2

$
  

   

To
ta

l A
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
io

n
s:

1
0

,9
3

3
,0

7
2

$
  

   
1

0
,3

1
7

,8
0

3
$

  
   

6
1

5
,2

6
9

$
  

   

LE
SS

:

D
e

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

- 
R

ev
en

u
es

 -
(D

o
lla

rs
 In

):

St
at

e 
M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 R

ev
en

u
e 

Sh
ar

in
g

4
6

9
,9

4
6

$
  

  
4

5
0

,3
8

7
$

  
   

1
9

,5
5

9
$

  
   

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

u
es

 -
 i.

e.
 E

xc
is

e,
 A

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

ed
 S

u
rp

lu
s,

 e
tc

.
1

,9
3

1
,5

2
2

$
  

   
1

,7
2

0
,0

0
0

$
  

   
2

1
1

,5
2

2
$

  
   

To
ta

l D
e

d
u

ct
io

n
s:

2
,4

0
1

,4
6

8
$

  
   

2
,1

7
0

,3
8

7
$

  
   

2
3

1
,0

8
1

$
  

   

R
EM

A
IN

IN
G

 T
O

TA
L 

TO
 B

E 
R

A
IS

ED
 B

Y
 T

A
X

ES
:

8
,5

3
1

,6
0

4
$

  
   

8
,1

4
7

,4
1

6
$

  
   

3
8

4
,1

8
8

$
  

   

M
ill

 R
at

e
:

To
ta

l t
o

 b
e 

ra
is

ed
 b

y 
ta

xe
s 

÷ 
To

ta
l V

al
u

at
io

n
 B

as
e 

=
 M

in
im

u
m

 M
ill

 R
at

e
 C

al
cu

la
ti

o
n

 x
 (

1
0

0
%

 +
 O

ve
rl

ay
 P

er
ce

n
ta

ge
) 

= 
C

h
o

se
n

 M
ill

 R
at

e
  

8
,5

3
1

,6
0

4
 ÷

 6
8

0
,7

2
3

,6
2

0
 =

 0
.0

1
2

5
3

3
 x

 1
0

0
.6

%
 =

 0
.0

1
2

6
1

Ta
x 

Fo
r 

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
t:

Ta
xa

b
le

 R
ea

l &
 P

er
so

n
al

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 x

 M
ill

 R
at

e
  =

  T
ax

 f
o

r 
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t 
 

6
6

2
,4

7
3

,1
0

0
 x

 0
.0

1
2

6
1

 =
 8

,3
5

3
,7

8
6

O
ve

rl
ay

:

Ta
x 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
t 

+
 H

o
m

es
te

ad
 &

 B
ET

E 
R

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
ts

 -
 T

o
ta

l t
o

 b
e 

ra
is

ed
 b

y 
ta

xe
s 

= 
O

ve
rl

ay
 

8
,3

5
3

,7
8

6
 +

 2
1

4
,4

0
4

 +
 1

5
,7

3
5

 -
 8

,5
3

1
,6

0
4

 =
 5

2
,3

2
1

  

R
es

p
ec

tf
u

lly
 S

u
b

m
it

te
d

,  

**
N

u
m

b
er

s 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 r

o
u

n
d

ed
La

u
ri

e 
G

o
n

sk
a,

 C
M

A
   

8
/2

6
/2

0
2

4

ITEM #6: (c.) Assesor Committment Sumary



The Town of Lyman is considering the development of a municipal composting program
at the Transfer Station for residents to help reduce the amount of food waste in our
Municipal Solid Waste (MSW). By diverting food waste from our regular trash, we can
decrease the volume of MSW, which currently costs the town $97.50 per ton in tipping
fees. In contrast, single-sort recycling costs $65.00 per ton, highlighting the financial
benefits of reducing MSW.

This composting initiative aims to not only lower the financial burden on the town's
budget but also to promote eco-friendly practices that keep food waste out of Maine's
landfills. 

TOWN OF LYMAN COMPOSTING PROGRAM SURVEY

COMPOSTING
PROGRAM
SURVEY

We’d like your
feedback

T O W N  O F  L Y M A N

Your input is vital to shaping this program and
ensuring it meets the needs and expectations of
our community. Please take a few moments to
complete this survey and help us make Lyman a
greener, more sustainable place to live.

TAKE THE SURVEY
Scan the QR Code

w w w . l y m a n - m e . g o v

ITEM #6: (d.) ECO ME Rep



ITEM #6: (e.) Planning Board Report





Considerations for Speed and Weight Limit Adjustments on Town Roads 

At the request of Joe Wagner to consider reducing the speed limit and weight limit on Day Road, I 
have conducted extensive research into the role of municipalities in implementing such changes. 
Given that Mr. Wagner resides on Day Road and serves as an elected official on the Select Board, I 
recommend that he abstain from any involvement in this matter to ensure full transparency and 
avoid the appearance of a conflict of interest. 

I am referring this matter to the Select Board for their consideration, as these changes require 
approval from the Select Board and involve budgeting and allocation of municipal resources. Below 
is a summary of the relevant laws and requirements pertaining to changes in speed limits and 
weight limits on town roads 

Restricting Vehicle Weight on Posted Ways 

• State Law: Sets maximum weight limits for all public roads, including both state and local
roads.

o Temporary Weight Limits: Municipalities have the authority to set temporary weight
limits during mud season, provided they post a notice of the temporary restriction.

o Permanent Weight Limits: Municipalities may establish permanent weight limits,
but this requires the enactment of a local ordinance.

• Exemptions: Certain vehicles are exempt from weight limits under state law.

Increasing or Decreasing Speed Limits 

• State Authority: Speed limits on all public roads are set by the state.

• Municipal Requirements: To increase or decrease speed limits, municipalities must
comply with the requirements of Title 29-A §2705.

o Approval Process: Requires approval from the Maine Department of Transportation
(MDOT) and the Chief of the State Police, including written notice.

o Qualifying Municipality: The municipality must either have a population of over
2,500 or employ a professional engineer.

o Speed Zoning Responsibilities: Once approved, the municipality enters the “speed
zoning business” and assumes full responsibility for setting speed limits on all town
roads, not just select ones.

▪ Compliance: Must conform to the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control
Devices (MUTCD).

▪ Local Ordinance: Municipal officers must adopt a local traffic ordinance to
validate the new speed limits.

ITEM #7: (a.) Request to reduce speed limit



• Specific Allowances Under Title 29-A §2075: Allows municipalities to set certain speed
limits on specific roads.

o 20–25 MPH: Applicable to roads in business districts, residential districts, or
compact areas.

▪ Note: Day Road is primarily zoned as General Purpose.

o 30–50 MPH: Applicable to roads in all other areas.

• Speed Zoning Review: Changes in speed limits require a thorough review and analysis in
accordance with MUTCD procedures.

• Safety Considerations: Studies indicate that lowering speed limits may not necessarily
enhance safety.

• Other Considerations: The municipality may need to engage professional engineering
services for comprehensive reviews and traffic studies, as required. The Road
Commissioner frequently receives requests to lower speed limits, and becoming a speed-
setting municipality could lead to increased demand for such changes, requiring consistent
adherence to new standards. Given that the Road Commissioner is currently a part-time
position, we may need to also consider expanding this role to meet these demands.
Additionally, Lyman lacks policing authority for traffic violations, so while speed limits may
be reduced, enforcement will remain limited due to resource constraints.















TownManager
Pencil

TownManager
Pencil







TOWN OF LYMAN, MAINE 

MUNICIPAL OFFICERS’ ORDER 

30-A M.R.S. § 2528(5)

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 2528(5), the Municipal Officers hereby order that the 

following questions be placed on the ballot for a secret ballot referendum election 

to be held on  

Tuesday, November 5th, 2024 

Shall an ordinance entitled Town of Lyman Zoning Ordinance, adopted November 8, 2005, 

as amended, be further amended in Article 1, Section 1.8.3 Contract Zoning as proposed?  

(Copies of the text of the proposed amendments are available at the Town Clerk’s office) 

Shall an ordinance entitled Town of Lyman Zoning Ordinance, as adopted  

November 8, 2005, as amended, be further amended in Article 10, Section 10.6 Accessory 

Dwelling Units Subsection 10.6.1 through 10.6.7 as proposed? (Copies of the text of the 

proposed amendments are available from the Towns Clerk’s office) 

Shall an ordinance entitled Town of Lyman Shoreland Ordinance, as adopted June 4, 1993, 

as amended, be further amended in Section 15, Subsection B(2) Land Use Standards,  

Principal and Accessory Structures as proposed? (Copies of the text of the proposed 

amendments are available from the Towns Clerk’s office) 

Shall an ordinance entitled Floodplain Management Ordinance for the Town of Lyman as 

adopted June 16, 1998, be revised as proposed? (Copies of the text of the proposed  

ordinance are available from the Towns Clerk’s office) 

Shall the Town of Lyman Zoning Map, adopted June 1, 2010, as amended, be further  

amended as proposed?  (Copies of the text of the proposed amendments are available from 

the Towns Clerk’s office) 

Shall the Town of Lyman Municipal Charter, adopted November 6, 2012, as amended, be 

further amended in Article 4.2.4(f) as proposed? (Copies of the text of the proposed  

amendments are available from the Town Clerk’s office)  

Shall The Town authorize the Select Board to convey the property located at 28 South  

Street Lyman, Maine on Map 13, Lot# 009 to the Goodwin Mills Cemetery Association for 

the cost of all associated legal fees? 

COPY
ITEM #7: (b.) Order of Referenda



TOWN OF LYMAN, MAINE 

MUNICIPAL OFFICERS’ ORDER 

30-A M.R.S. § 2528(5)

Shall the Town authorize the Select Board to convey a portion of the Town Hall land at 11 

South Waterboro Road to an abutter, and accept a portion of the abutter’s property in  

exchange, for the purpose of reconfiguring the boundaries of the Town Hall property and  

facilitating the expansion project of the Town Hall? 

Dated: September 3, 2024 

Municipal Officers of the Town of Lyman 

______________________________ 

Jessica Picard (Chair)  

______________________________ 

Vicotria Gavel (Vice Chair) 

______________________________ 

Amber Swett 

______________________________ 

David Alves 

______________________________ 

Joseph Wagner COPY



TOWN OF LYMAN 

SPECIAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 5TH, 2024 

TO KATRINA RANDALL, RESIDENT IN THE TOWN OF LYMAN, COUNTY OF YORK, AND 

STATE OF MAINE.  

GREETINGS: In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the inhabitants of 

the Town of Lyman, qualified to vote in Town affairs, to meet at the Lyman Elementary School located at 39 

Schoolhouse Road on Tuesday November 5, 2024 at 7:50 AM, then and there to act on Article 1 and by secret 

ballot articles 2 through 9 as set out below, the polling hours therefore to be from 8:00 AM until 8:00 PM. 

The election of Moderator will take place at 7:50 AM, said articles being the following.  

ARTICLE 1: To choose a Moderator by written ballot to preside at said meeting. 

ARTICLE 2: Shall an ordinance entitled Town of Lyman Zoning Ordinance, adopted November 8, 2005, as 

amended, be further amended in Article 1, Section 1.8.3 Contract Zoning as proposed? (Copies 

of the text of the proposed amendments are available at the Town Clerk’s office) 

ARTICLE 3:  Shall an ordinance entitled Town of Lyman Zoning Ordinance, as adopted November 8, 2005, as 

amended, be further amended in Article 10, Section 10.6 Accessory Dwelling Units Subsection 

10.6.1 through 10.6.7 as proposed? (Copies of the text of the proposed amendments are available 

from the Towns Clerk’s office) 

ARTICLE 4: Shall an ordinance entitled Town of Lyman Shoreland Ordinance, as adopted June 4, 1993, as 

amended, be further amended in Section 15, Subsection B(2) Land Use Standards, Principal and 

Accessory Structures as proposed? (Copies of the text of the proposed amendments are available 

from the Towns Clerk’s office) 

ARTICLE 5: Shall an ordinance entitled Floodplain Management Ordinance for the Town of Lyman as 

adopted June 16, 1998, be revised as proposed? (Copies of the text of the proposed ordinance are 

available from the Towns Clerk’s office) 

ARTICLE 6: Shall the Town of Lyman Zoning Map, adopted June 1, 2010, as amended, be further amended as 

proposed?  (Copies of the text of the proposed amendments are available from the Towns Clerk’s 

office) 

ARTICLE 7: Shall the Town of Lyman Municipal Charter, adopted November 6, 2012, as amended, be further 

amended in Article 4.2.4(f) as proposed? (Copies of the text of the proposed amendments are 

available from the Town Clerk’s office)  

DRAFT
ITEM #7: (c.) Town Meeting Warrant



ARTICLE 8: Shall The Town authorize the Select Board to convey the property located at 28 South Street 

Lyman, Maine on Map 13, Lot# 009 to the Goodwin Mills Cemetery Association for the cost of 

all associated legal fees? 

ARTICLE 9: Shall the Town authorize the Select Board to convey a portion of the Town Hall land at 11 South 

Waterboro Road to an abutter, and accept a portion of the abutter’s property in exchange, for the 

purpose of reconfiguring the boundaries of the Town Hall property and facilitating the expansion 

project of the Town Hall? 

Given under our hand at Lyman, Maine this 3rd Day of September A.D., 2024. 

____________ _____________________________ 

Jessica Picard (Chair) Victoria Gavel (Vice Chair) 

____________ _____________________________ 

David Alves Joseph Wagner 

Amber Swett Municipal Officers of the Town of Lyman 

A true copy of the warrant,  

Attest: ________________________ 

Town Clerk, Susan Bellerose 

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 
11 South Waterboro Rd. 

Lyman, ME  04002 
Tel. 207-499-7562  Fax 207-499-7563 

September 3rd, 2024 

To the Town of Lyman Selectboard: 

We are writing to because we have requested $50k for removal of dangerous trees in many of our 
ancient cemeteries.  As you have indicated, this request will not go on the November 2024 ballot. 

It has been suggested the Lyman Cemetery Committee do some fund-raising efforts to help defray 

the costs of the tree removal. The Cemetery Committee will start off their fundraising efforts by 

hosting an event joined by the Historical Society at Funky Bow on September 6th, 2024.  

The Cemetery Committee requests permission to organize fundraising events and product sales 

specifically dedicated to the revitalization of  Bunganut Park as outlined in the purpose below.  

Cemetery Committee Expendable Funds Account 

To create an Expendable Fund for the purpose of  continued preservation efforts of  Lyman’s Ancient Cemeteries, 

including tree removal, mowing, cleaning, restoration, and other efforts towards the preservation of  these cemeteries. 

To be overseen by the Lyman Cemetery Committee.  

Thank you! 

Katrina and Bob Randall 
Sheila and Dan McNeil 

Lyman Cemetery Committee 

Accepted and approved by the Lyman Select Board on September 3rd, 2024 

___________________________ _____________________________ 
Jessica Picard – Chair  Victoria Gavel – Vice Chair 

___________________________ _____________________________ 
Amber Swett  David Alves 

___________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

COPY
ITEM #7: (f.) Cemetery Committee Request



TOWN OF LYMAN 
11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002  

Tel: (207)-247-0642 FAX: (207)-499-7563 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

TRANSFER STATION  
EQUIPMENT SANDBLAST & PAINT SERVICES 

PROJECT TITLE: Transfer Station – Equipment Sandblast & Paint Services 

PROPOSAL DUE DATE:       by 1:00pm 
Sealed bids will be opened on  2024 during the Select Board meeting. 

CONTENTS OF THIS RFP: 

1. Introduction
2. Scope of Work
3. Conditions & Instructions to Bidders
4. Pricing
5. Submission of Proposals
6. Bid Proposal Form

1. INTRODUCTION

The Town of Lyman is seeking qualified contractors to perform off-site sandblasting and painting of entire loader 

apparatus, and replacement of the cab floor. The intent of this RFP is to solicit proposals from experienced vendors 

capable of delivering high-quality, durable results while minimizing equipment downtime. 

The scope of work is as outlined in this request for proposal. This document does not commit the Town of Lyman to 
any contract for any service, supply, or subscription whatsoever. The Town of Lyman will not reimburse any 
information or administrative costs incurred as a result of participation in response to the RFP. All costs associated 
with response will solely reside at the responding party’s expense.  

Please submit your proposal in a sealed envelope to the Town of Lyman by_____________, 2024 by 1:00pm EST. 
Proposals must be addressed to: 

Town of Lyman, Select Board 
RFP: Transfer Station – Equipment Sandblast & Paint Services 
11 South Waterboro Rd 
Lyman, ME 04002 

Please mark sealed proposals plainly “RFP: Transfer Station – Equipment Sandblast & Paint Services”. Proposals will 
be opened publicly during the Select Boards regular meeting on                       , 2024. The Town will not except late 
bids.  

Questions regarding this request for proposal should be directed to: 

townmanager@lyman-me.gov  
Or call the Town Manager Office: 207-247-0642 

DRAFT
ITEM #7: (g.) RFP for Transfer Station

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov


2. SCOPE OF WORK

The loader apparatus is a critical piece of equipment at our Transfer Station, and this project aims to restore and 

extend its service life. The scope of work includes the following key tasks: 

DETAILS: 

SANDBLASTING 

• Objective: Complete removal of all existing paint, rust, and contaminants from the loader surface areas.

• Requirements:

o Use appropriate sandblasting media to avoid damaging the loader apparatus.

o Ensure all surfaces are thoroughly cleaned and prepared for painting.

o Dispose of all debris and waste in compliance with environmental regulations.

PAINTING 

• Objective: Apply a durable, corrosion-resistant paint finish to the loader cab.

• Requirements:

o Apply a primer coat to all exposed metal surfaces post-sandblasting.

o Apply a minimum of two coats of high-quality salt resistant paint specifically designed for industrial

machinery. Provide color choice options for the consumer.

o Ensure the paint application is smooth, with no visible defects such as runs, sags, or missed areas.

CAB FLOOR REPLACEMENT 

• Objective: Replace the existing cab floor with a new, durable material that meets or exceeds original

equipment specifications.

• Requirements:

o Remove the existing cab floor, ensuring that any underlying structural issues are identified and

addressed.

o Install a new cab floor using materials that are resistant to wear, corrosion, and heavy use.

o Ensure the installation is secure, with all seams and joints properly sealed.

o Inspect the completed work to ensure it meets safety and durability standards.

o Paint the cab floor with a durable corrosion-resistant paint

OTHER DELIVERABLES & QUALIFICATIONS  

The Town of Lyman will coordinate appropriate measures for transportation needs of the loader apparatus. 

Work should be completed in a reasonable time frame that minimizes equipment downtime. The bidder must 

specify the project timeline in the bid proposal. Project start date is anticipated to be scheduled by October 22nd, 

2024.  

Bidder shall provide warranty information for materials and workmanship 

The selected contractor must be experienced in sandblasting and painting heavy machinery and cab floor 

replacement for similar equipment.   

DRAFT



3. CONDITIONS & INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

• Bidders shall use the enclosed bid form and submit additional information/credentials attached with bid form.

• Proposals must include separate line-item costs for any or all the items outlined on the proposal form.

• Proposals must be completed in full and must be signed by a firm official or representative. Proposals may be
withdrawn prior to the time set for the official opening. Request for withdrawn must be submitted in writing.

• Proposals will be opened publicly. Bidders or representatives may be present at opening.

• Issuance of this RFP and receipt of proposals does not commit the Town to award a contract. The Town
reserves the right to postpone receipt date, accepting or rejecting any or all proposals received in response
to this RFP, or to negotiate with any of the consultants/firms submitting an RFP, or to cancel all or part of this
RFP.

• Please state “RFP: Transfer Station – Equipment Sandblast & Paint Services” on submitted, sealed envelope.

• The Town of Lyman reserves the right to waive any formality and technicality, whichever is deemed best for
the interest of the Town.

• The Select Board will review sealed bids in an open public meeting and may, at the boards’ discretion, delay award
pending further review. It should be noted that the contract resulting from this RFP will be awarded to the
respondent whose proposal is determined to be in the “best interest” of the Town. Therefore, the proposal
offering the lowest cost may not necessarily be the proposal that is selected for award.

• RIGHT OF REFUSAL. The Town reserves the right to: a) Reject any or all proposals, or to make no award. b)
Select certain applications from the proposals. c) Require modifications to initial proposals. d) to make partial
or multiple awards. e) award based on initial proposals received, without discussion of such proposals. f)
invite selected vendors to make oral presentations to the evaluations team. Failure of a vendor to comply
with the request for meeting may be grounds for bid rejections. g) excuse technical defects in a proposal
when, in its sole discretion, such as excuse is beneficial to the Town.

4. PRICING

Proposals will clearly state and explain all costs associated with the services provided including lead time and 
warranty information.  

There is no expressed or implied obligation on the part of the Town of Lyman to reimburse bidders for any expenses 
incurred in preparing or presenting proposals in response to this request.  

5. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS

All proposals must be submitted in sealed envelopes, addressed to the Town of Lyman, Select Board and plainly 
marked “RFP: Transfer Station – Equipment Sandblast & Paint Services” 

DRAFT



Bid proposals will be date stamped on the outside of the envelope immediately upon receipt. Any bid may be 
withdrawn in writing prior to the scheduled time for opening bids. Any bids received after the time and date 
specified shall not be considered and shall be returned to the bidder unopened. Bidders shall bid to specifications 
and any exceptions must be noted. A bidder submitting a bid thereby certifies that the bid is made in good faith 
without fraud, collusion, or connection of any kind with any other bidder for the same work, and that the bidder is 
competing solely on his/her behalf without connection with or obligation to any unsolicited person or firm.  

No electronically submitted proposals will be accepted in response to this request. 

The Town Manager will serve as the single point of contact for this request. All official communication between the 
bidder and the Town upon release of this RFP shall be with the Town Manager. Any other communication will be 
considered unofficial and non-binding on the Town. However, bidders are encouraged to visit the Transfer Station 
and/or inquire about the scope of work, if necessary, to help submit an accurate bid.  

Lindsay Gagne 
Town Manager 
11 South Waterboro Rd 
Lyman, ME 04002 
Tel. (207)-247-0642 
email: Townmanager@lyman-me.gov 

This RFP does not obligate the Town of Lyman to contract for services specified herein.  

The Town of Lyman reserves the right to extend a contract for ongoing services without reissuing an RFP. 

DRAFT

mailto:Townmanager@lyman-me.gov


6. BID PROPOSAL FORM

Due: ________________ 2024 by 1:00pm  EST. 

To: Town of Lyman, Select Board 
RFP: Transfer Station – Equipment Sandblast & Paint Services 
11 South Waterboro Rd 
Lyman, ME 04002 

Contractor shall provide a breakdown of costs, including materials, labor, and any other expenses. 

Services/ Materials Quantity Price 

Total Pricing 

Contractor/Vendor warrants its work as specified below against all defects in materials or workmanship. 

___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________ 

The undersigned individual/firm/business guarantees this price for sixty days (60) from the proposal due date. The undersigned submits this 

proposal without collusion with any other person, individual, firm or agency. The undersigned ensures the authority to act on behalf of the 

corporation, partnership or individual they represent; and has read and agreed to all of the terms, requests, or conditions written herein by the 

Town of Lyman.   

By signing this form, the firm listed below hereby affirms that its bid meets the minimum specifications and standards as listed above. 

Signature ____________________________________________ Company ________________________________________ 

Name (print) _________________________________________ Telephone # _____________________________________ 

Title __________________________________________ Website__________________________________________________ 

Address _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Email Address ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAFT


	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	Text11: 
	Text12: 
	Text13: 
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: 


